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PART I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                                                                                                                        

 
PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Unaudited)
 

(thousands)  As of  
  Mar. 30, 2014   Dec. 31, 2013 
ASSETS         
Current Assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 23  $ 34 
Trade receivables, net   42,842   22,644 
Inventories   59,680   56,510 
Deferred tax assets   2,818   3,762 
Prepaid expenses and other   2,306   4,749 

Total current assets   107,669   87,699 
Property, plant and equipment, at cost   101,459   101,060 

Less accumulated depreciation   59,738   58,943 
Property, plant and equipment, net   41,721   42,117 

Goodwill   16,495   16,495 
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization (2014: $6,427; 2013: $5,640)   24,824   25,611 
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization (2014: $1,492; 2013: $1,405)   1,197   1,283 
Other non-current assets   966   982 
TOTAL ASSETS  $ 192,872  $ 174,187 
         
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
Current Liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 36,842  $ 18,826 
Accrued liabilities   13,885   13,585 

Total current liabilities   50,727   32,411 
Long-term debt   47,394   55,000 
Deferred compensation and other   2,517   2,546 
Deferred tax liabilities   1,876   1,920 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   102,514   91,877 
         
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY         
Common stock   53,955   53,863 
Additional-paid-in-capital   7,664   6,604 
Accumulated other comprehensive income   54   54 
Retained earnings   28,685   21,789 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   90,358   82,310 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $ 192,872  $ 174,187 

 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)

 
 
(thousands except per share data)  First Quarter Ended  
  March 30,   March 31,  
  2014   2013  
         
NET SALES  $ 170,150  $ 142,120 
Cost of goods sold   143,003   119,684 

GROSS PROFIT   27,147   22,436 
         
Operating expenses:         

Warehouse and delivery   6,112   4,536 
Selling, general and administrative   8,500   6,969 
Amortization of intangible assets   787   519 
Gain on sale of fixed assets   (13)   (4)

Total operating expenses   15,386   12,020 
         
OPERATING INCOME   11,761   10,416 

Interest expense, net   549   552 
Income before income taxes   11,212   9,864 

Income taxes   4,316   3,845 
NET INCOME  $ 6,896  $ 6,019 
         
BASIC NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE  $ 0.64  $ 0.55 
DILUTED NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE  $ 0.64  $ 0.55 
         
         
Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic   10,702   10,904 
Weighted average shares outstanding - Diluted   10,815   10,985 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC.
 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

 
(thousands)  Three Months Ended  
  March 30, 2014   March 31, 2013 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         

Net income  $ 6,896  $ 6,019 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:         

Depreciation   1,324   1,288 
Amortization of intangible assets   787   519 
Stock-based compensation expense   733   263 
Deferred compensation expense   83   59 
Deferred income taxes   900   3,357 
Gain on sale of fixed assets   (13)   (4)
Decrease in cash surrender value of life insurance   23   23 
Deferred financing cost amortization   87   86 
Change in operating assets and liabilities:         

Trade receivables   (20,198)   (15,097)
Inventories   (3,170)   (5,363)
Prepaid expenses and other   2,423   1,130 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   17,672   8,951 
Payments on deferred compensation obligations   (76)   (92)

Net cash provided by operating activities   7,471   1,139 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

Capital expenditures   (914)   (1,308)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment   19   481 
Other   (7)   (6)

Net cash used in investing activities   (902)   (833)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

Long-term debt borrowings (payments), net   (7,606)   4,382 
Payment of deferred financing costs   (1)   (50)
Stock repurchases under buyback program   -   (3,567)
Realization of excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation   1,037   - 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, including tax benefit   26   - 
Payments on capital lease obligations   (36)   (50)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   (6,580)   715 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (11)   1,021 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   34   434 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 23  $ 1,455 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC. 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

 
 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
 

In the opinion of Patrick Industries, Inc. (“Patrick” or the “Company”), the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments
(consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the Company’s financial position as of March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and its results of
income and cash flows for the three months ended March 30, 2014 and March 31, 2013.

 
Patrick’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial
statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been
condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules or regulations. For a description of significant accounting policies used by the Company in the preparation of its consolidated
financial statements, please refer to Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2013. The December 31, 2013 condensed consolidated statement of financial position data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all
disclosures required by U.S. GAAP. Operating results for the first quarter ended March 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2014.

 
In preparation of Patrick’s condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the quarter ended March 30, 2014, management evaluated all material subsequent
events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date through the date of issuance of the Form 10-Q for potential recognition or disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements. See Note 13 for events that occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date.

 
2. INVENTORIES
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (First-In, First-Out (FIFO) Method) or market and consist of the following classes:
 

(thousands)  Mar. 30, 2014   Dec. 31, 2013  
Raw materials  $ 25,262  $ 24,135 
Work in process   5,107   4,870 
Finished goods   4,914   3,877 
Less: reserve for inventory obsolescence   (1,191)   (938)

Total manufactured goods, net   34,092   31,944 
Materials purchased for resale (distribution products)   26,013   24,904 
Less: reserve for inventory obsolescence   (425)   (338)

Total materials purchased for resale (distribution products), net   25,588   24,566 
Total inventories  $ 59,680  $ 56,510 

 
 
6



 
 
3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS        
 

Goodwill and other intangible assets are allocated to the Company’s reporting units at the date they are initially recorded. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are
not amortized but are subject to an annual (or under certain circumstances more frequent) impairment test based on their estimated fair value. Goodwill impairment testing
is performed at the reporting unit level, one level below the business segment. The Company’s Manufacturing segment includes goodwill originating from the acquisitions
of Gravure Ink (acquired in the Adorn Holdings, Inc. acquisition), Quality Hardwoods Sales (“Quality Hardwoods”), A.I.A. Countertops, LLC (“AIA”), Infinity Graphics,
Décor Mfg., LLC (“Décor”), Creative Wood Designs, Inc. (“Creative Wood”), Middlebury Hardwood Products, Inc. (“Middlebury Hardwoods”), Frontline Mfg., Inc.
(“Frontline”), and Premier Concepts, Inc. (“Premier”). While Gravure Ink, AIA, Infinity Graphics, Décor, Creative Wood, Middlebury Hardwoods, Frontline, and Premier
remain reporting units of the Company for which impairment is assessed, Quality Hardwoods is assessed for impairment as part of the Company’s hardwood door reporting
unit. The Company’s Distribution segment includes goodwill originating from the acquisitions of Blazon International Group (“Blazon”) and John H. McDonald Co., Inc.
d/b/a West Side Furniture (“West Side”), which remain reporting units for which impairment is assessed.

 
Finite-lived intangible assets that meet certain criteria continue to be amortized over their useful lives and are subject to an impairment test based on estimated
undiscounted cash flows when impairment indicators exist. The Company performs the required impairment test of goodwill in the fourth quarter or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may exceed the fair value. No impairment was recognized during the first quarter ended March 30, 2014.
There have been no material changes to the method of evaluating goodwill impairment during the first quarter of 2014. The Company does not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change in the estimates or assumptions used to determine impairment in the foreseeable future.

 
Goodwill

 
As of March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill in the Manufacturing segment and the Distribution segment was $13.7 million and $2.8
million, respectively.

 
Other Intangible Assets

 
As of March 30, 2014, the remaining intangible assets balance of $24.8 million is comprised of $4.1 million of trademarks which have an indefinite life, and therefore, no
amortization expense has been recorded, and $20.7 million pertaining to customer relationships and non-compete agreements which are being amortized over periods
ranging from 3 to 19 years.
 
Other intangible assets, net consist of the following as of March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:
 

(thousands)  Mar. 30, 2014   Dec. 31, 2013  
Customer relationships  $ 23,668  $ 23,668 
Non-compete agreements   3,417   3,417 
Trademarks   4,166   4,166 
   31,251   31,251 
Less: accumulated amortization   (6,427)   (5,640)
Other intangible assets, net  $ 24,824  $ 25,611 

 
Changes in the carrying value of other intangible assets for the three months ended March 30, 2014 by segment are as follows:

 
(thousands)  Manufacturing   Distribution   Total  
Balance – December 31, 2013  $ 19,626  $ 5,985  $ 25,611 
Amortization   (554)   (233)   (787)
Balance – March 30, 2014  $ 19,072  $ 5,752  $ 24,824 
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4. ACQUISITIONS
 

2013 Acquisitions
 

Frontline 
 

In September 2013, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Warsaw, Indiana-based Frontline, a manufacturer of fiberglass bath fixtures including tubs,
showers, and combination tub/shower units for the RV, MH, and residential housing markets, for a net purchase price of $5.2 million, which includes a contingent payment
based on future performance. This acquisition provided the opportunity for the Company to establish a presence in the fiberglass bath and shower surround and fixtures
market and increase its product offerings, market share, and per unit content. The results of operations for Frontline are included in the Company’s condensed consolidated
financial statements and the Manufacturing operating segment from the date of acquisition. The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement was estimated by
applying the income approach and included assumptions related to the probability of future payments and discounted cash flows. The excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, which represents the value of leveraging the Company’s existing purchasing, manufacturing, sales, and
systems resources with the organizational talent and expertise of the Frontline team to maximize efficiencies, revenue impact, market share growth, and net income.
 
The acquisition was funded through borrowings under the Company’s 2012 Credit Facility (as defined herein). Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition
were recorded on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of financial position at their estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisition. The preliminary
purchase price allocation is subject to final approval and thus, all required purchase accounting adjustments are expected to be finalized in the first half of 2014. The
following summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition:

 
(thousands)     
Trade receivables  $ 1,640 
Inventories   250 
Property, plant and equipment   917 
Prepaid expenses   21 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (2,135)
Intangible assets   2,092 
Goodwill   2,395 

Total net purchase price  $ 5,180 
 
Premier 

 
In September 2013, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Warsaw, Indiana-based Premier, a custom fabricator of solid surface, granite, and quartz
countertops for the RV, MH and residential housing markets, for a net purchase price of $2.6 million, which includes a contingent payment based on future performance.
This acquisition provided the opportunity for the Company to expand its presence in the countertop market and increase its product offerings, market share, and per unit
content. The results of operations for Premier are included in the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and the Manufacturing operating segment from
the date of acquisition. The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement was estimated by applying the income approach and included assumptions related to the
probability of future payments and discounted cash flows. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, which
represents the value of leveraging the Company’s existing purchasing, manufacturing, sales, and systems resources with the organizational talent and expertise of the
Premier team to maximize efficiencies, revenue impact, market share growth, and net income.  
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The acquisition was funded through borrowings under the Company’s 2012 Credit Facility. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded on the
Company’s condensed consolidated statements of financial position at their estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisition. The preliminary purchase price allocation
is subject to final approval and thus, all required purchase accounting adjustments are expected to be finalized in the first half of 2014. The following summarizes the
estimated fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition:

 
(thousands)     
Trade receivables  $ 791 
Inventories   347 
Property, plant and equipment   561 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (1,357)
Intangible assets   1,210 
Goodwill   1,068 

Total net purchase price  $ 2,620 
  
West Side 

 
In September 2013, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Goshen, Indiana-based West Side, a wholesale supplier of La-Z-Boy® recliners and the
Serta® Trump Home™ mattress line, among other furniture products, to the RV market, for a net purchase price of $8.7 million. This acquisition provided the opportunity
for the Company to expand its presence in the wholesale furniture business for the RV industry, and increase its product offerings, market share, and per unit content. The
results of operations for West Side are included in the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and the Distribution operating segment from the date of
acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill, which represents the value of leveraging the Company’s
existing purchasing, sales, and systems resources with the organizational talent and expertise of the West Side team to maximize efficiencies, revenue impact, market share
growth, and net income.  
 
The acquisition was funded through borrowings under the Company’s 2012 Credit Facility. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded on the
Company’s condensed consolidated statements of financial position at their estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisition. The following summarizes the fair values
of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition:
 

(thousands)     
Trade receivables  $ 902 
Inventories   1,439 
Property, plant and equipment   324 
Prepaid expenses   9 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (2,094)
Intangible assets   5,461 
Goodwill   2,670 

Total net purchase price  $ 8,711 
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Pro Forma Information
 

The following pro forma information for the first quarter ended March 31, 2013 assumes the Frontline, Premier, and West Side acquisitions occurred as of January 1, 2013,
the beginning of the year in which such acquisitions occurred. The pro forma information contains the actual operating results of Frontline, Premier, and West Side,
combined with the results prior to their respective acquisition dates adjusted to reflect the pro forma impact of the acquisitions occurring as of January 1, 2013, the
beginning of the year in which such acquisitions occurred. In addition, the pro forma information includes amortization expense related to intangible assets acquired in
these three acquisitions of approximately $0.3 million in the aggregate for the first quarter ended March 31, 2013.
 

  First Quarter Ended  
(thousands except per share data)  March 31, 2013  
Revenue  $ 151,575 
Net income   6,114 
Basic net income per common share   0.56 
Diluted net income per common share   0.56 

 
The pro forma information is presented for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisitions been consummated as of that time, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
 
There were no businesses acquired in the first quarter of 2014 and the first quarter of 2013.  

 
5. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
 

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with fair value recognition provisions. The Company recorded compensation expense of $0.7 million
and $0.3 million for the first quarters ended March 30, 2014 and March 31, 2013, respectively, for its stock-based compensation plans on the condensed consolidated
statements of income.

 
The Company estimates the fair value of (i) all stock grants as of the grant date using the closing price per share of the Company’s common stock on such date, and (ii) all
stock option and stock appreciation rights awards as of the grant date by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved
the following share grants in 2013: 89,947 shares on March 4, 2013; 5,000 shares on March 11, 2013; and 19,480 shares on May 23, 2013. In addition, the Board approved
the issuance of 200,000 shares that may be issued upon the exercise of stock options that were granted on December 18, 2013, and the issuance of 200,000 shares that may
be issued upon the exercise of stock appreciation rights that were granted on December 18, 2013. The grant of the stock appreciation rights is subject to shareholder
approval of amendments to the Company’s 2009 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) to increase the number of shares available for grant under the Plan and to make
certain other changes, and the Company has accounted for the stock appreciation rights as if such amendments were approved.

 
The following share grants were approved in 2014: 34,000 shares on February 12, 2014 and 65,668 shares on February 18, 2014. In addition, on February 18, 2014, the
Board approved the issuance of 44,001 restricted stock units under the Plan.
 
As of March 30, 2014, there was approximately $7.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock-based compensation arrangements granted under
incentive plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 25.6 months. 

 
6. INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
 

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per common
share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, plus the dilutive effect of stock options, stock appreciation
rights, and restricted stock units (collectively “Common Stock Equivalents”). The dilutive effect of Common Stock Equivalents is calculated under the treasury stock
method using the average market price for the period. Certain Common Stock Equivalents were not included in the computation of diluted net income per common share
because the strike prices of those Common Stock Equivalents were greater than the average market price of the common shares.
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Income per common share is calculated for the first quarter periods as follows:
 

  March 30,   March 31,  
(thousands)  2014   2013  
Net income for basic and diluted per share calculation  $ 6,896  $ 6,019 
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic   10,702   10,904 
Effect of potentially dilutive securities   113   81 
Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted   10,815   10,985 
Basic net income per common share  $ 0.64  $ 0.55 
Diluted net income per common share  $ 0.64  $ 0.55 

 
 

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
 

As of March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, other non-current assets of $1.0 million were net of borrowings against the cash value of life insurance policies on certain of
the Company’s officers and directors of approximately $2.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively.  

 
8. DEBT
 

Total long-term debt outstanding at March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $47.4 million and $55.0 million, respectively.
 

2012 Credit Facility
 

On October 24, 2012, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “2012 Credit Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association as the agent and lender
(“Wells Fargo”), and Fifth-Third as participant (collectively, the “Lenders”), to establish a five-year $80.0 million revolving secured senior credit facility (the “2012 Credit
Facility”).  

The 2012 Credit Agreement is secured by a pledge of substantially all of the assets of the Company pursuant to a Security Agreement, dated October 24, 2012, between the
Company and Wells Fargo, as agent. The 2012 Credit Agreement includes certain definitions, terms and reporting requirements and includes the following provisions:

 
 ● The maturity date for the 2012 Credit Facility is October 24, 2017;
 
 ● Borrowings under the revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”) are subject to a maximum borrowing limit of $80.0 million;
 
 ● The Company has the option to increase the 2012 Credit Facility by an amount up to $20.0 million upon request to and subject to the approval of the Lenders;
 

 ● The interest rates for borrowings under the Revolver are the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin or the London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) plus the Applicable
Margin, with a fee payable by the Company on unused but committed portions of the Revolver;

 

 ● The Revolver includes a sub-limit up to $5.0 million for same day advances (“Swing Line”) which shall bear interest based upon the Base Rate plus the Applicable
Margin;

 
 ● Up to $20.0 million of the Revolver will be available as a sub facility for the issuance of standby letters of credit, which are subject to certain expiration dates;
 

 ● The financial covenants include requirements as to a consolidated total leverage ratio and a consolidated interest coverage ratio, and other covenants include
limitations on permitted acquisitions, capital expenditures, indebtedness, restricted payments and fundamental changes (see further details below); and

 
 ● Customary prepayment provisions which require the prepayment of outstanding amounts under the Revolver based on predefined conditions.
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At March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had $47.4 million and $55.0 million, respectively, outstanding under its Revolver. The interest rate for
borrowings under the Revolver at March 30, 2014 was the Prime Rate plus 0.50% (or 3.75%), or LIBOR plus 1.50% (which ranged from 1.625% to 1.6875%). The interest
rate for borrowings under the Revolver at December 31, 2013 was the Prime Rate plus 0.50% (or 3.75%), or LIBOR plus 1.50% (or 1.6875%). The fee payable on
committed but unused portions of the Revolver was 0.20% for both of these periods.

 
Pursuant to the 2012 Credit Agreement, the financial covenants include (a) a maximum consolidated total leverage ratio, measured on a quarter-end basis, not to exceed
3.50:1.00 for the 12 month period ending on such quarter-end; (b) a required minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio under the Revolver, measured on a quarter-end
basis, of at least 2.25:1.00 for the 12 month period ending on such quarter-end; and (c) a limitation on annual capital expenditures of $12.0 million for 2013 and $10.0
million for subsequent fiscal years. If the consolidated total leverage ratio is in excess of 3.00:1.00 and less than 3.50:1.00, the Company is considered to be in compliance
with this financial covenant provided it maintains an asset coverage ratio of at least 1.00 to 1.00 as of the close of each period.    

 
The consolidated total leverage ratio is the ratio for any period of (i) consolidated total indebtedness to (ii) earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”). Consolidated total indebtedness for any period is the sum of (i) total debt outstanding under the Revolver, (ii) capital leases and letters of credit outstanding,
and (iii) deferred payment obligations. The asset coverage ratio for any period is the ratio of (i) eligible amounts of the Company’s trade payables, inventory and fixed
assets, minus certain reserves as defined under the 2012 Credit Agreement to (ii) the sum of outstanding obligations under the 2012 Credit Facility.

 
The consolidated interest coverage ratio for any period is the ratio of (i) EBITDA minus depreciation to (ii) the sum of consolidated interest expense plus restricted
payments made by the Company.

 
As of and for the fiscal three-month period ended March 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with all three of these financial covenants at each reporting date. The
required maximum total leverage ratio, minimum interest coverage ratio, and the annual capital expenditures limitation amounts compared to the actual amounts as of and
for the fiscal three-month period ended March 30, 2014 are as follows:

 
(thousands except ratios)  Required   Actual  
Consolidated leverage ratio (12-month period)   3.50   0.90 
Consolidated interest coverage ratio (12-month period)   2.25   11.90 
Annual capital expenditures limitation (actual year-to-date)  $ 10,000  $ 914 

 
9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and accounts payable approximated fair value as of March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 because
of the relatively short maturities of these financial instruments. The carrying amount of long-term debt approximated fair value as of March 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013, based upon terms and conditions available to the Company at those dates in comparison to the terms and conditions of its outstanding long-term debt. 

 
10. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, relating to accumulated changes in the funded status of pension benefits was $54,000 at both March 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.
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11. INCOME TAXES
 

The Company recorded income taxes at an estimated full year effective rate of 38.5% in the first quarter of 2014 and 39% in the first quarter of 2013.
 
The Company had various state net operating loss carry forwards (“NOLs”) of approximately $4.5 million at December 31, 2013, of which approximately $3.7 million were
remaining to be utilized as of March 30, 2014. The Company estimates that it will utilize a significant majority of the remaining state NOLs by the end of 2014.
 
In the first quarter of 2014, the Company realized a net tax benefit of approximately $1.0 million related to excess benefits on stock-based compensation, which had not
been recorded as deferred tax assets at December 31, 2013. This tax benefit was recorded to shareholders’ equity upon realization in the first quarter of 2014.  

 
12. SEGMENT INFORMATION
 

The Company has determined that its reportable segments are those based on its method of internal reporting, which segregates its businesses by product category and
production/distribution process.

 
A description of the Company’s reportable segments is as follows:

 
Manufacturing – The Company’s most significant manufacturing division is lamination, which utilizes various materials, such as lauan, medium-density fiberboard
(“MDF”), gypsum, and particleboard, which are bonded by adhesives or a heating process to a number of products, including vinyl, paper, foil, and high-pressure
laminates. These products are utilized to produce furniture, shelving, wall, counter, and cabinet products with a wide variety of finishes and textures. This segment
also includes a cabinet door division, a fiberglass bath fixtures division, a hardwood furniture division, a vinyl printing division, a solid surface, granite, and quartz
fabrication operation, and an exterior graphics division. Patrick’s major manufactured products also include wrapped vinyl, paper and hardwood profile mouldings,
interior passage doors, and slotwall panels and components. The Manufacturing segment contributed approximately 76% and 78% of the Company’s net sales for the
three months ended March 30, 2014 and March 31, 2013, respectively.

 
Distribution – The Company distributes pre-finished wall and ceiling panels, drywall and drywall finishing products, electronics, wiring, electrical and plumbing
products, cement siding, interior passage doors, roofing products, laminate and ceramic flooring, shower doors, furniture, fireplaces and surrounds, interior and
exterior lighting products, and other miscellaneous products. The Distribution segment contributed approximately 24% and 22% of the Company’s net sales for the
three months ended March 30, 2014 and March 31, 2013, respectively.

 
The tables below present unaudited information about the sales and operating income of those segments.

 
First Quarter Ended March 30, 2014:  
(thousands)  Manufacturing   Distribution   Total  
Net outside sales  $ 128,686  $ 41,464  $ 170,150 
Intersegment sales   5,062   601   5,663 
Operating income   13,144   2,297   15,441 
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First Quarter Ended March 31, 2013:  
(thousands)  Manufacturing   Distribution   Total  
Net outside sales  $ 111,463  $ 30,657  $ 142,120 
Intersegment sales   4,939   861   5,800 
Operating income   11,724   1,919   13,643 

 
The table below presents a reconciliation of segment operating income to consolidated operating income:

 
  First Quarter Ended  
  March 30,   March 31,  
(thousands)  2014   2013  
Operating income for reportable segments  $ 15,441  $ 13,643 
Gain on sale of fixed assets   13   4 
Unallocated corporate expenses   (2,906)   (2,712)
Amortization of intangible assets   (787)   (519)

Consolidated operating income  $ 11,761  $ 10,416 
 
13. STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM
 

On February 22, 2013, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program for purchasing up to $10.0 million of the Company’s common stock over the next 12 months. On
February 13, 2014, the Board authorized an increase in the amount of the Company’s stock that may be acquired through the existing stock repurchase program over the
next 12 months to $20.0 million, including approximately $3.9 million available under the previous authorization. There were no stock repurchases made during the first
quarter ended March 30, 2014.
 
In the second quarter of 2014 through April 30, 2014, the Company repurchased 23,011 shares at an average price of $39.90 per share for a total cost of approximately $0.9
million. Since the inception of the stock repurchase program in February 2013 through April 30, 2014, the Company has repurchased in the aggregate 430,341 shares at an
average price of $16.26 per share for a total cost of approximately $7.0 million.

 
Common Stock

 
The Company’s common stock does not have a stated par value. As a result, repurchases of common stock have been reflected, using an average cost method, as a
reduction of common stock, additional paid-in-capital, and retained earnings on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of financial position.  
 
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
OVERVIEW

 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in Item 1 of this Report. In addition, this MD&A contains certain statements relating to future results which
are forward-looking statements as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. See “Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements”
on page 27 of this Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking statements.
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The MD&A is divided into seven major sections:
 

OVERVIEW OF MARKETS AND RELATED INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE
 

REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS
First Quarter Ended March 30, 2014 Compared to 2013

 
REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
First Quarter Ended March 30, 2014 Compared to 2013
Unallocated Corporate Expenses

 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows
Capital Resources
Summary of Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 
OTHER
Seasonality
Inflation

 
INFORMATION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 
OVERVIEW OF MARKETS AND RELATED INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE

 
The first quarter of 2014 reflected a continuation of solid growth in the recreational vehicle (“RV”) market, despite extended severe winter weather conditions in the
Midwest that caused production and shipping delays throughout the industry. However, these weather-related issues did not have a significant impact on our overall revenue
results as evidenced by a continuing seasonal sales pickup each month consistent with the Company’s expectations. The manufactured housing (“MH”) industry, while also
impacted by the winter weather conditions during the quarter, also saw a year-over-year shipment improvement. Additionally, while there was a modest decline in new
housing starts in the first quarter of 2014, our sales to the industrial market sector, which is primarily tied to the residential housing market, were up significantly over the
first quarter of 2013. We expect stronger seasonal patterns in the second and third quarters of 2014 when compared to the first quarter of 2014.

 
Overall, we have continued to capture market share through our strategic acquisitions, line extensions, and new product initiatives. While general uncertainty remains
related to the sustainability of the strength of the economic recovery, we expect the three primary markets that we serve to experience steady growth in the remainder of
2014. In addition, we are seeing resilience, in particular in the RV market, with what we believe to be upside potential in the immediate future based on current indicators
including seasonal retail sales and wholesale shipment trends consistent with prior years, positive traffic on dealer retail lots, and balance related to dealer inventory levels
when compared to original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) production levels.

 
RV Industry

 
The RV industry, which is our primary market and comprised 76% of the Company’s first quarter 2014 sales, continued to strengthen as evidenced by higher production
levels and wholesale unit shipments versus the prior year. According to the Recreational Vehicle Industry Association (“RVIA”), shipment levels reached 89,971 units in
the first quarter of 2014, representing an increase of approximately 13% versus the prior year period, and resulted in year-over-year shipment increases in 17 of the last 18
quarters.

 
We believe continued growth in 2014 in industry-wide retail sales and the related production levels of RVs will be dependent on the overall perception of the economy,
consumer confidence levels, and conditions in the credit markets. The severe winter weather experienced in the Midwest and in some of our regional locations did cause
production and shipping delays during the first quarter of 2014 not only for the Company but for certain RV OEMs as well. As a result, these OEMs moved some
production activity to the weekends over the course of the first quarter to be able to meet dealer demand levels.
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Certain of the OEMs are currently facing a shortage of RV transport drivers to deliver their products to the retail dealers. We are currently monitoring this situation in order
to determine the impact, if any, on overall wholesale unit shipment levels for the 2014 year. Additionally, further increases in fuel prices have the potential to negatively
impact RV retail unit sales in the short-term, however, we believe that the RV market has a “lifestyle” component to it that will continue to drive a solid base shipment level.
The correlation between the indicators mentioned above, as well as favorable demographic trends, leads us to believe that the RV industry has a positive longer-term
outlook as overall economic conditions and consumer confidence improve. We are anticipating continued steady growth in this market and further believe that RV dealers
have the capacity to carry the additional inventory necessary to support this growth, which would maintain an overall balance in the industry from OEM wholesale
shipments to dealer inventory levels to retail sales at this time. We continue to believe the future is promising for the RV industry based on factors including shipment
growth over the past four years, positive industry demographic trends, anticipated increasing demand levels, and improving strength of the overall economic environment.
 
MH Industry

 
The MH industry represented approximately 13% of the Company’s first quarter 2014 sales. According to industry sources, wholesale unit shipments increased
approximately 6% over the first quarter of 2013. While we believe this industry was more materially impacted by the severe winter weather conditions in the first quarter of
2014, we expect to see stronger seasonal patterns in the second and third quarters of 2014. While we do not anticipate significant growth in the MH market, we believe that
demand has reached the bottom of the cycle and there is opportunity for moderate year-over-year growth, with limited downside risk in the near-term, based on volumes
maintaining their historical relationship with new housing starts and assuming the availability of credit and recalibration of quality credit standards. Additionally,
manufactured housing provides a cost effective alternative for those individuals and families seeking to establish or re-establish home ownership, or whose credit ratings
have been impacted by the economic and job environment over the past several years. We also believe manufactured housing to be an attractive option for those who have
migrated to temporary housing alternatives.

 
Factors that may favorably impact production levels further in this industry include quality credit standards in the residential housing market, job growth, favorable changes
in financing laws, new tax credits for new homebuyers and other government incentives, higher interest rates on traditional residential housing loans, and improved
conditions in the asset-backed securities markets for manufactured housing loans. There is still overhang related to the factors that negatively impacted demand in the MH
industry in recent years, including the lack of financing alternatives and credit availability, slow job growth and, in certain areas, excess residential housing inventories.
However, we believe that there is also longer term potential for this industry as residential housing demand recovers. On average over the last 40 years, approximately three-
fourths of total residential housing starts have been single-family housing starts. In addition, wholesale unit shipment levels in the MH industry have averaged
approximately 10% of the level of single-family housing starts over the last 10 years.

 
Industrial Market

 
The industrial market accounted for 11% of our first quarter 2014 sales and is comprised primarily of the kitchen cabinet industry, retail and commercial fixture market,
office and household furniture market and regional distributors. The Company experienced a slight shift in its industrial market sales mix, moving from approximately 60%
directly tied to the residential housing market in recent quarters to approximately 57% in the first quarter of 2014. This decrease reflected a slight increase in our sales to the
commercial side of the business, mainly in the office furniture market, and by continued expansion in the countertop market. While the U.S. Department of Commerce
reported a 2% decrease in new housing starts in the first quarter 2014 compared to the prior year, we saw our industrial sales increase approximately 24% when compared to
the first quarter of 2013 as a result of both acquisition and organic growth. The National Association of Home Builders (“NAHB”) (as of May 2, 2014) is forecasting an
approximate 17% increase in new housing starts in 2014 compared to 2013. Our sales to this market generally lag new residential housing starts by six to nine months.

 
 

16



 
 

In order to offset some of the impacts of the weakness in the residential housing market in recent years, we have focused on diversification efforts, strategic acquisitions,
and bringing new and innovative products to the market. Additionally, we have targeted certain sales efforts towards market segments that are less directly tied to new
residential home construction, including the retail fixture, office, furniture, and countertop markets. As a result, we have seen a shift in our product mix, which has had a
positive impact on revenues from the industrial markets. In addition, we believe that projected continued low interest rates and overall expected economic improvement as
well as pent up demand are still some of the drivers that will impact the housing industry for the next several years.

 
2014 Outlook

 
In general, the three primary markets that we serve experienced steady growth in the first quarter of 2014, which we expect to continue throughout the remainder of 2014.
The RVIA currently forecasts that RV unit shipment levels in 2014 will increase approximately 6% when compared to the full year 2013. In addition, we anticipate a further
increase in production levels in the MH industry in 2014, reflecting improvement in the overall economy and consistent with the improvement in single-family residential
housing starts as projected by the NAHB for the full year 2014. Based on the industry’s current annualized run rates, the Company projects wholesale MH unit shipments
for full year 2014 to increase by approximately 8% compared to 2013. New housing starts in 2014 are estimated to improve by approximately 17% year-over-year (as
forecasted by the NAHB as of May 2, 2014) consistent with improving overall economic conditions.

 
Despite the impact of the severe winter weather conditions experienced in the Midwest in the first quarter of 2014 on unit shipments and production schedules, we are
optimistic about the future of the three primary markets that we serve and continue to believe there is limited downside risk in the near future, and that we are well-
positioned to increase revenues in each of these markets as the overall economic environment improves. While our visibility related to longer-term industry conditions is
limited to approximately six months, we expect to continue to see quarterly year-over-year revenue growth for the remainder of fiscal year 2014, exclusive of the revenue
contributions of acquisitions completed in the third quarter of 2013 and any potential acquisitions in 2014. We will continue to review our operations on a regular basis,
balance appropriate risks and opportunities, and maximize efficiencies to support the Company’s long-term strategic growth goals. Our team remains focused on strategic
acquisitions, capturing market share and increasing our per unit content, keeping costs aligned with revenue, maximizing operating efficiencies, talent management, and the
execution of our organizational strategic agenda. Key focus areas for 2014 include strategic revenue growth, improved operating income and net income, earnings per share,
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“EBITDA”), and free cash flow. Additional focus areas include:

 
 ● Sales into additional commercial/institutional markets to diversify revenue base;
 ● Further improvement of operating efficiencies in all manufacturing operations and corporate functions;
 ● Acquisition of businesses/product lines that meet established criteria;

 ● Balance aggressive management of inventory quantities and pricing with the need to meet expected customer demand growth, as well as the addition of select key
commodity suppliers; and

 ● Ongoing development of existing product lines and the addition of new product lines.
 

In conjunction with our organizational strategic agenda, we will continue to make targeted capital investments to support new business and leverage our operating platform,
and we will work to more fully integrate sales efforts to strengthen and broaden customer relationships and meet customer demands with high quality service that exceeds
our customers’ expectations. In the first quarter of 2014, capital expenditures were approximately $0.9 million versus $1.3 million in the first quarter of 2013. The current
capital plan for full year 2014 includes expenditures approximately up to $8.0 million, and includes the ongoing replacement of our Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”)
system, equipment upgrades to ensure that our facilities have the capacity, capabilities and technology to facilitate our growth plans, and other strategic capital and
maintenance improvements.
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REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS
 

First Quarter Ended March 30, 2014 Compared to 2013
 

The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of income.
 

  First Quarter Ended  
  March 30,  March 31, 
  2014  2013 
Net sales   100.0%  100.0%
Cost of goods sold   84.0   84.2 
Gross profit   16.0   15.8 
Warehouse and delivery expenses   3.6   3.2 
Selling, general and administrative expenses   5.0   4.9 
Amortization of intangible assets   0.5   0.4 
Gain on sale of fixed assets   -   - 
Operating income   6.9   7.3 
Interest expense, net   0.3   0.4 
Income taxes   2.5   2.7 
Net income   4.1   4.2 

  
Net Sales. Net sales in the first quarter of 2014 increased $28.0 million or 19.7%, to $170.1 million from $142.1 million in the first quarter of 2013. The increase was
primarily attributable to a 21% increase in the Company’s revenue from the RV industry, a 12% increase in revenues from the MH industry, and a 24% increase in revenues
from the industrial markets. The severe winter weather in the Midwest caused production and shipping delays in January and February in our Indiana operations and in
certain of our other regional operations. However, these weather-related issues did not have a significant impact on our overall revenue results as evidenced by a continuing
seasonal sales pickup in each month of the first quarter of 2014.
 

Excluding the revenue contributions of the three acquisitions completed in 2013 (Frontline Mfg., Inc. (“Frontline”), Premier Concepts, Inc. (“Premier”), and John H.
McDonald Co., Inc. d/b/a West Side Furniture (“West Side”), the Company estimates its organic growth in the first quarter of 2014 at approximately 13%, or $17.5 million
of the total revenue increase, comprised of growth resulting from market share gains of approximately 1% and growth tied to overall industry improvement of approximately
12%. The remaining $10.5 million revenue increase in the first quarter of 2014 was attributable to the incremental contribution of the 2013 acquisitions (including related
market share and industry growth), resulting in incremental growth of approximately 7%.
 

The sales increase in the first quarter of 2014 is also primarily attributable to: (i) increased RV market penetration; (ii) improved retail fixture, residential cabinet and office
furniture business in the industrial markets; and (iii) an increase in wholesale unit shipments in the MH industry. Our sales to the industrial market sector, which is primarily
tied to the residential housing and commercial and retail fixture markets, generally lag new residential housing starts by approximately six to nine months.
 
The Company's RV content per unit (based on a trailing twelve-month basis) increased to $1,364 for the first quarter of 2014 from $1,142 for the first quarter of 2013. The
MH content per unit (based on a trailing twelve-month basis) increased to $1,599 for the first quarter of 2014 from $1,580 for the comparable 2013 period.
 
The RV industry, which represented approximately 76% of the Company’s sales in the first quarter, saw wholesale unit shipments increase by approximately 13%, in that
period compared to 2013. The MH industry, which represented 13% of the Company’s first quarter 2014 sales, experienced a 6% increase in wholesale unit shipments
compared to the prior year period. The industrial market sector accounted for approximately 11% of the Company’s sales in the first quarter of 2014. We estimate that
approximately 57% of our industrial revenue base in the first quarter of 2014 is directly tied to the residential housing market.
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We expect to continue to see quarterly year-over-year revenue growth for the remainder of fiscal year 2014, exclusive of the revenue contributions of the acquisitions
completed in the third quarter of 2013 and any potential acquisitions in 2014.       
 
Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold increased $23.3 million or 19.5%, to $143.0 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $119.7 million in 2013. As a percentage of net
sales, cost of goods sold decreased during the first quarter of 2014 to 84.0% from 84.2% in 2013.

 
Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales was positively impacted in the first quarter of 2014 by: (i) increased revenues relative to our overall fixed overhead costs, (ii)
the impact of acquisitions completed in the third quarter of 2013, and (iii) ongoing organizational and process changes that enhanced labor efficiencies, reduced scrap and
returns, and increased material yields. Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales was negatively impacted in the current quarter by: (i) an increase in sales of a lower
margin product at two of the Company’s distribution facilities; (ii) increased overtime expenses and contract labor expenses incurred to satisfy customer demand levels at
one of our distribution operations; and (iii) fluctuations in the costs of certain commodities used in the manufacturing of our products during 2014 compared to 2013. In
addition, higher energy costs and increased demand in certain market sectors can result in fluctuating costs of certain commodities of raw materials and other products that
we utilize and distribute from quarter to quarter. The Company continues to explore alternative sources of raw materials and components, both domestically and from
overseas.

 
Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $4.7 million or 21.0%, to $27.1 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $22.4 million in the first quarter of 2013. As a percentage of
net sales, gross profit increased to 16.0% in the first quarter of 2014 from 15.8% in the same period in 2013. The net improvement in gross profit dollars in the first quarter
of 2014 reflected the net impact of the factors discussed above under “Cost of Goods Sold.”

 
Economic or industry-wide factors affecting the profitability of our RV, MH, and industrial businesses include the costs of commodities used to manufacture our products
and the competitive environment that can cause gross margins to fluctuate from quarter-to-quarter and year-to-year. We expect full year gross margins to increase in 2014
from 2013, exclusive of any commodity pricing fluctuations, competitive pricing dynamics, or other circumstances outside of our control, as a result of operating leverage
from continued expected sales growth, as well as higher gross margins on acquisitions completed in prior years when compared to historical consolidated gross margins. We
expect this increase in gross margin in 2014 to be partially offset by a slight increase in operating expenses as a percentage of net sales as described below.
 
Warehouse and Delivery Expenses. Warehouse and delivery expenses increased $1.6 million or 34.7%, to $6.1 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $4.5 million in the
first quarter of 2013. As a percentage of net sales, warehouse and delivery expenses were 3.6% and 3.2% in the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase in
the percentage of net sales in the first quarter of 2014 primarily reflected: (i) increased overtime expenses for Company fleet drivers and greater utilization of more costly
third party contract drivers, in certain of our manufacturing and distribution operations, related to a shortage of qualified drivers to transport our products to our customers;
(ii) unexpected inefficiencies in our shipping and production schedules due to the severe winter weather conditions in the Midwest in the first quarter of 2014; and (iii)
distribution related overhead and assembly costs in one of our significantly growing distribution operations. Based on normal seasonal tracking patterns, we could
experience an increase in our warehouse and delivery expenses in the second quarter of 2014 due to the impact of certain factors described above, and on increasing
demand levels, the driver shortage, and the pressure of freight rate increases.

 
Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses. SG&A expenses increased $1.5 million or 22.0%, to $8.5 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $7.0 million in
the first quarter of 2013. Additional headcount associated with recent acquisitions, increased stock compensation expense of approximately $0.5 million from quarter to
quarter, and an increase in accrued incentive compensation related to higher levels of operating profits, contributed to a net increase in selling and administrative wages,
incentives and payroll taxes in the first quarter of 2014 compared to the prior year period. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses were 5.0% in the first quarter of
2014 compared to 4.9% in 2013.
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As noted above, we expect that SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales in 2014 will increase slightly when compared to 2013 as a result of the incremental impact of
acquisitions completed in 2013, and increased sales, salaried, and administrative spending to support expected growth. Additionally, in December 2013 and in February
2014, several long-term equity compensation awards, designed to incentivize, reward, and retain certain key leaders in the organization, were granted under the Company’s
2009 Omnibus Incentive Plan. The awards will have an estimated $1.9 million incremental non-cash impact on SG&A expenses in fiscal year 2014 when compared to the
prior year. We expect these incremental costs to be offset by the previously described expected increase in gross margin in 2014.

 
Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased $0.3 million in the first quarter of 2014 compared to the prior year period, primarily
reflecting the impact of businesses acquired in the third quarter of 2013 (Frontline, Premier and West Side). In the aggregate, in conjunction with the 2013 acquisitions, the
Company recognized $8.1 million in certain finite-lived intangible assets that are being amortized over periods ranging from three to 10 years.

 
Operating Income. Operating income increased $1.4 million or 12.9% to $11.8 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $10.4 million in the prior year. The change in
operating income is primarily attributable to the factors previously described.

 
Income Taxes. The Company recorded income taxes at an estimated effective tax rate of 38.5% in the first quarter of 2014 and 39% in the first quarter of 2013. As we
continue to refine our state income tax estimates, which are impacted by shifts in apportionment factors among states as a result of recent acquisition activity and other
factors, we could experience further fluctuations in our combined effective income tax rate from period to period and for the remainder of 2014.

  
In the first quarter of 2014, the Company realized a net tax benefit of approximately $1.0 million related to excess benefits on stock-based compensation, which had not been
recorded as deferred tax assets at December 31, 2013, at its then estimated effective combined 38.5% federal and state tax rate. This tax benefit was recorded to
shareholders’ equity upon realization in the first quarter of 2014.
 

Net Income. Net income for the first quarter of 2014 was $6.9 million or $0.64 per diluted share compared to $6.0 million or $0.55 per diluted share for 2013.  The changes
in net income for the first quarter of 2014 reflect the impact of the items previously discussed.  

 
REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

 
The Company has determined that its reportable segments are those based on its method of internal reporting, which segregates its businesses by product category and
production/distribution process.

 
The Company’s reportable business segments are as follows:

 
Manufacturing – The Company’s most significant manufacturing division is lamination, which utilizes various materials, such as lauan, medium-density fiberboard
(“MDF”), gypsum, and particleboard, which are bonded by adhesives or a heating process to a number of products, including vinyl, paper, foil, and high-pressure
laminates. These products are utilized to produce furniture, shelving, wall, counter, and cabinet products with a wide variety of finishes and textures. This segment also
includes a cabinet door division, a fiberglass bath fixtures division, a hardwood furniture division, a vinyl printing division, a solid surface, granite, and quartz
fabrication operation, and an exterior graphics division. Patrick’s major manufactured products also include wrapped vinyl, paper and hardwood profile mouldings,
interior passage doors, and slotwall and slotwall components.
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Distribution – The Company distributes pre-finished wall and ceiling panels, drywall and drywall finishing products, electronics, wiring, electrical and plumbing
products, cement siding, interior passage doors, roofing products, laminate and ceramic flooring, shower doors, furniture, fireplaces and slide-out surrounds, interior
and exterior lighting products, and other miscellaneous products.

 
First Quarter Ended March 30, 2014 Compared to 2013

 
Sales pertaining to the Manufacturing and Distribution segments as stated in the following discussions include intersegment sales. Gross profit includes the impact of
intersegment operating activity.

 
The table below presents information about the sales, gross profit, and operating income of the Company’s operating segments. A reconciliation to consolidated operating
income is presented in Note 12 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

 
  First Quarter Ended  
(thousands)  March 30, 2014   March 31, 2013  
Sales         

Manufacturing  $ 133,748  $ 116,402 
Distribution   42,065   31,518 

         
Gross Profit         

Manufacturing   20,817   17,740 
Distribution   6,844   5,812 

         
Operating Income         

Manufacturing   13,144   11,724 
Distribution   2,297   1,919 

  
Manufacturing 

 
Sales. Sales increased $17.3 million or 14.9%, to $133.7 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $116.4 million in 2013. This segment accounted for approximately 76% of
the Company’s consolidated net sales for the first quarter of 2014 and 78% for the first quarter of 2013. In the first quarter of 2014, the sales increase reflected a 15%
increase in the Company’s revenue from the RV industry, a 7% increase from the MH industry, and a 24% increase in revenue from the industrial markets. In addition, the
severe winter weather in the Midwest caused production and shipping delays in January and February in our Indiana operations and in certain of our other regional
operations. However, the weather-related impact did not have a significant impact on our overall revenue results as evidenced by a continuing seasonal sales pickup in each
month of the first quarter of 2014.   
 
Approximately $5.9 million of the revenue improvement in the first quarter of 2014 was attributable to the incremental contribution of acquisitions completed in 2013
(including related market share and industry growth). The remaining sales increase of $11.4 million in the first quarter of 2014 is primarily attributable to: (i) increased RV
market penetration, (ii) an increase in wholesale unit shipments in the RV and MH industries of approximately 13% and 6% in the first quarter of 2014, respectively; and
(iii) improved retail fixture, residential cabinet, and office furniture business in the industrial markets.
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Excluding the revenue contributions of the 2013 acquisitions, the Company estimates its organic revenue growth in the Manufacturing segment in the first quarter of 2014 at
approximately 10%. We expect to continue to see quarterly year-over-year revenue growth for the remainder of fiscal year 2014 compared to the prior year period, exclusive
of the revenue contributions of the acquisitions completed in the third quarter of 2013 and any potential acquisitions in 2014.
 
Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $3.1 million to $20.8 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $17.7 million in the first quarter of 2013. As a percentage of sales, gross
profit increased to 15.6% in the first quarter of 2014 from 15.2% in 2013. Gross profit for the first quarter of 2014 improved primarily as a result of: (i) higher revenues; (ii)
the impact of acquisitions completed during 2013; (iii) increased profitability at our Midwest manufacturing divisions, which benefited from actions to reduce or eliminate
negative margins on certain products; and (iv) ongoing organizational and process changes that enhanced labor efficiencies, reduced scrap and returns, and increased
material yields.
 
Operating Income. Operating income increased $1.4 million to $13.1 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $11.7 million in the prior year. The improvement in
operating income primarily reflects the increase in gross profit mentioned above that was partially offset by: (i) higher warehouse and delivery costs as a percentage of net
sales that reflected increased overtime expenses for Company fleet drivers and greater utilization of more costly third party contract drivers in certain manufacturing
operations related to the driver shortage previously described; (ii) unexpected inefficiencies in our shipping and production schedules due to the severe winter weather
conditions in the Midwest in the first quarter of 2014; and (iii) to a lesser extent, higher SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales due to the incremental impact of
acquisitions completed in 2013 and increased sales, salaried and administration spending to support expected growth.     

 
Distribution

 
Sales. Sales increased $10.6 million or 33.5%, to $42.1 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $31.5 million in 2013. This segment accounted for approximately 24% of
the Company’s consolidated net sales for the first quarter of 2014 and approximately 22% for the first quarter of 2013. In the first quarter of 2014, the sales increase
reflected a 43% increase in the Company’s revenue from the RV industry, an 18% increase in revenue from the MH industry, and a 24% increase in revenue from the
industrial markets.

 
The acquisition of West Side in the third quarter of 2013 accounted for approximately $4.6 million of the revenue increase in the first quarter of 2014. Sales were also
positively impacted during the first quarter of 2014 by a 6% increase in wholesale unit shipments in the MH industry, which is the primary market this segment serves.
Excluding the revenue contribution of the 2013 acquisition, the Company estimates its organic revenue growth in the Distribution segment at approximately 19% in the first
quarter of 2014.
  
Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $1.0 million to $6.8 million in the first quarter of 2014 from $5.8 million in 2013. As a percentage of sales, gross profit was 16.3% in
the first quarter of 2014 compared to 18.4% in 2013. The decrease in gross profit as a percentage of sales for the first quarter of 2014 is primarily attributable to an increase
in sales of a lower margin product at two of the Company’s distribution facilities and increased overtime expenses and contract labor expenses incurred to satisfy customer
demand levels at one of our distribution operations.

 
Operating Income. Operating income in the first quarter of 2014 increased $0.4 million to $2.3 million from $1.9 million in the prior year period. The overall increase in
revenues, as well as the acquisition of several new product lines associated with the West Side distribution business acquired in the third quarter of 2013, made a positive
contribution to operating income during the first quarter of 2014. The increase in operating income was partially offset by: (i) increased overtime expenses for Company
fleet drivers and greater utilization of more costly third party contract drivers in certain of our distribution operations related to the driver shortage previously described; (ii)
unexpected inefficiencies in our shipping schedules due to the severe winter weather conditions in the Midwest in the first quarter of 2014; and (iii) distribution related
overhead and assembly costs in one of our significantly growing distribution operations.
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Unallocated Corporate Expenses
 

Unallocated corporate expenses in the first quarter of 2014 increased $0.2 million to $2.9 million from $2.7 million in the comparable prior year period primarily reflecting
an increase in administrative wages, incentives and payroll taxes, and additional headcount associated with the 2013 acquisitions.  

 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

 
Cash Flows

 
Operating Activities

 
Cash flows from operations represent the net income earned in the reported periods adjusted for non-cash charges or credits and changes in operating assets and liabilities.
Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operating activities, cash reserves and borrowings under our 2012 Credit Facility. Our principal uses of cash in 2014 are
to meet working capital demands, support our acquisition and capital expenditure plans, meet debt service requirements, and repurchase the Company’s common stock.

 
Net cash provided by operating activities was $7.5 million in the first quarter of 2014 compared to $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2013. Trade receivables increased $20.2
million and $15.1 million, respectively, in the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, reflecting increased sales levels in each of those periods, including the post-acquisition sales
increases of the acquisitions completed in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

 
Inventories increased $3.2 million in the first quarter of 2014 compared to $5.4 million in the comparable 2013 period, primarily reflecting the post-acquisition sales
increases of the acquisitions completed in 2013 and 2012, respectively, and an increase in sales volumes. We expect our inventory turn levels to begin to increase in the
second quarter of 2014 based on the expected seasonality of our 2014 revenues, which includes the impact of the severe winter weather conditions in early 2014. In addition,
we will work together with key suppliers to match lead-time and minimum order requirements and to take advantage of strategic buying opportunities. The $17.7 million net
increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the first quarter of 2014 compared to the $9.0 million net increase in the comparable 2013 period primarily reflected
the increased level of business activity and ongoing operating cash management, and the impact of acquisitions.

 
From a tax perspective, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carry forwards (“NOLs”) for the past several years resulting in virtually no cash taxes being
paid other than franchise taxes and various state filing taxes, including in the first quarter of 2013. The Company fully utilized its remaining federal NOL in the first half of
2013. In addition, in the first quarter of 2014, the Company realized a net tax benefit of approximately $1.0 million, at its then estimated effective combined 38.5% federal
and state tax rate, related to excess benefits on stock-based compensation, which had not been recorded as deferred tax assets at December 31, 2013. This tax benefit was
recorded to shareholders’ equity upon realization in the first quarter of 2014 and is reflected in cash flows from financing activities.

 
The Company recorded income taxes at an estimated effective tax rate of 38.5% in the first quarter of 2014 and 39% in the first quarter of 2013. As we continue to refine
our state income tax estimates, which are impacted by shifts in apportionment factors among states as a result of recent acquisition activity and other factors, we could
experience further fluctuations in our combined effective income tax rate from period to period and for the remainder of 2014.
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Investing Activities 
 

Investing activities used cash of $0.9 million in the first quarter of 2014 primarily to fund capital expenditures. Cash used in investing activities of $0.8 million in the first
quarter of 2013 was primarily to fund capital expenditures of $1.3 million.

 
The capital plan for full year 2014 includes spending related to the ongoing continued replacement of our current ERP system, equipment upgrades to ensure that our
facilities have the capacity, capabilities and technology to facilitate our growth plans, and other strategic capital and maintenance improvements. Our current operating
model forecasts capital expenditures for fiscal 2014 to approximate up to $8.0 million.

 
Financing Activities

 
Net cash flows used by financing activities of $6.6 million in the first quarter of 2014 primarily reflected long-term debt payments of $7.6 million. As of March 30, 2014,
availability under the revolving line of credit was approximately $30.7 million.
 
Cash provided by financing activities in the first quarter of 2014 also included $1.0 million related to the realization of the excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation
with no comparable amount in the prior year first quarter. See the related discussion above under “Cash Flows – Operating Activities” for additional details.
 
For the first quarter of 2013, the net increase in borrowings on the Company’s revolving line of credit was $4.4 million. In addition, the Company used cash to repurchase
258,933 shares of common stock, for an aggregate purchase price of $3.6 million, under the $10.0 million stock repurchase program authorized by the Company’s Board in
February 2013.
 
On February 13, 2014, the Company’s Board authorized an increase in the amount of the Company’s stock that may be acquired through the existing stock repurchase
program over the next 12 months to $20.0 million, including approximately $3.9 million available under the previous authorization. There were no stock repurchases made
during the first quarter ended March 30, 2014. In the second quarter of 2014 through April 30, 2014, the Company repurchased 23,011 shares at an average price of $39.90
per share for a total cost of approximately $0.9 million. Since the inception of the stock repurchase program in February 2013 through April 30, 2014, the Company has
repurchased in the aggregate 430,341 shares at an average price of $16.26 per share for a total cost of approximately $7.0 million.
 
Capital Resources

 
2012 Credit Facility

 
On October 24, 2012, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “2012 Credit Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association as the agent and lender
(“Wells Fargo”), and Fifth-Third as participant (collectively, the “Lenders”), to establish a five-year $80.0 million revolving secured senior credit facility (the “2012 Credit
Facility”).
 
The 2012 Credit Agreement is secured by a pledge of substantially all of the assets of the Company pursuant to a Security Agreement, dated October 24, 2012, between the
Company and Wells Fargo, as agent. The 2012 Credit Agreement includes certain definitions, terms and reporting requirements and includes the following provisions:

 
 ●The maturity date for the 2012 Credit Facility is October 24, 2017;
 
 ●Borrowings under the revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”) are subject to a maximum borrowing limit of $80.0 million;
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 ●The Company has the option to increase the 2012 Credit Facility by an amount up to $20.0 million upon request to and subject to the approval of the Lenders;
 

 ●The interest rates for borrowings under the Revolver are the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin or the London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) plus the Applicable
Margin, with a fee payable by the Company on unused but committed portions of the Revolver;

 

 ●The Revolver includes a sub-limit up to $5.0 million for same day advances (“Swing Line”) which shall bear interest based upon the Base Rate plus the Applicable
Margin;

 
 ●Up to $20.0 million of the Revolver will be available as a sub facility for the issuance of standby letters of credit, which are subject to certain expiration dates;
 

 ●The financial covenants include requirements as to a consolidated total leverage ratio and a consolidated interest coverage ratio, and other covenants include
limitations on permitted acquisitions, capital expenditures, indebtedness, restricted payments and fundamental changes (see further details below); and

 
 ●Customary prepayment provisions which require the prepayment of outstanding amounts under the Revolver based on predefined conditions.
 

At March 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had $47.4 million and $55.0 million, respectively, outstanding under its Revolver. The interest rate for
borrowings under the Revolver at March 30, 2014 was the Prime Rate plus 0.50% (or 3.75%), or LIBOR plus 1.50% (which ranged from 1.625% to 1.6875%). The interest
rate for borrowings under the Revolver at December 31, 2013 was the Prime Rate plus 0.50% (or 3.75%), or LIBOR plus 1.50% (or 1.6875%). The fee payable on
committed but unused portions of the Revolver was 0.20% for both of these periods.

 
Pursuant to the 2012 Credit Agreement, the financial covenants include (a) a maximum consolidated total leverage ratio, measured on a quarter-end basis, not to exceed
3.50:1.00 for the 12 month period ending on such quarter-end; (b) a required minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio under the Revolver, measured on a quarter-end
basis, of at least 2.25:1.00 for the 12 month period ending on such quarter-end; and (c) a limitation on annual capital expenditures of $12.0 million for 2013 and $10.0
million for subsequent fiscal years. If the consolidated total leverage ratio is in excess of 3.00:1.00 and less than 3.50:1.00, the Company is considered to be in compliance
with this financial covenant provided it maintains an asset coverage ratio of at least 1.00 to 1.00 as of the close of each period.

 
The consolidated total leverage ratio is the ratio for any period of (i) consolidated total indebtedness to (ii) EBITDA. Consolidated total indebtedness for any period is the
sum of (i) total debt outstanding under the Revolver, (ii) capital leases and letters of credit outstanding, and (iii) deferred payment obligations. The asset coverage ratio for
any period is the ratio of (i) eligible amounts of the Company’s trade payables, inventory and fixed assets, minus certain reserves as defined under the 2012 Credit
Agreement to (ii) the sum of outstanding obligations under the 2012 Credit Facility.

 
The consolidated interest coverage ratio for any period is the ratio of (i) EBITDA minus depreciation to (ii) the sum of consolidated interest expense plus restricted
payments made by the Company.
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As of and for the fiscal three-month period ended March 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with all three of these financial covenants at each reporting date. The
required maximum total leverage ratio, minimum interest coverage ratio, and the annual capital expenditures limitation amounts compared to the actual amounts as of and for
the fiscal three-month period ended March 30, 2014 are as follows:
 

(thousands except ratios)  Required   Actual  
Consolidated leverage ratio (12-month period)   3.50   0.90 
Consolidated interest coverage ratio (12-month period)   2.25   11.90 
Annual capital expenditures limitation (actual year-to-date)  $ 10,000  $ 914 

  
Summary of Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations, which includes selling our products and collecting receivables, available cash reserves and borrowing
capacity available under the 2012 Credit Facility. Our primary uses of cash are to meet working capital demands, support our acquisition and capital expenditure plans, and
the repurchase of the Company’s common stock.

 
Borrowings under the revolving line of credit under the 2012 Credit Facility are subject to a maximum borrowing limit of $80.0 million and are subject to variable rates of
interest. Based on certain circumstances, the Company has the option to increase the revolving credit in an amount of up to $20.0 million upon request to and subject to the
approval of the Lenders. The unused availability under the 2012 Credit Facility as of March 30, 2014 was $30.7 million. We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents,
cash generated from operations, and available borrowings under our 2012 Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for working capital, capital
expenditures, and stock repurchases for at least the next 12 months, exclusive of any acquisitions, based on our current cash flow budgets and forecasts of our short-term
and long-term liquidity needs.

 
Our ability to access unused borrowing capacity under the 2012 Credit Facility as a source of liquidity is dependent on our maintaining compliance with the financial
covenants as specified under the terms of the 2012 Credit Agreement. For the first quarter of 2014 and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, we were in compliance
with all of our debt covenants at each reporting date as required under the terms of the 2012 Credit Agreement. Based on our 2014 operating plan, we expect to continue to
maintain compliance with the financial covenants under the 2012 Credit Agreement.

 
In 2014, our management team is focused on increasing market share, maintaining margins, keeping costs aligned with revenue, further improving operating efficiencies,
managing inventory levels and pricing, acquiring businesses and product lines that meet established criteria, and the ongoing implementation of our new ERP system, all of
which may impact our sources and uses of cash from period to period and impact our liquidity levels. In addition, future liquidity and capital resources may be impacted as
we continue to make targeted capital investments to support new business and leverage our operating platform and to repurchase common stock in conjunction with the
Company’s previously announced stock buyback program.

 
Our working capital requirements vary from period to period depending on manufacturing volumes related to the RV and MH industries, the timing of deliveries, and the
payment cycles of our customers. In the event that our operating cash flow is inadequate and one or more of our capital resources were to become unavailable, we would
seek to revise our operating strategies accordingly. We will continue to assess our liquidity position and potential sources of supplemental liquidity in view of our operating
performance, current economic and capital market conditions, and other relevant circumstances.

 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 
There have been no material changes to our significant accounting policies which are summarized in the MD&A and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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OTHER
 
Seasonality

 
Manufacturing operations in the RV and MH industries historically have been seasonal and are generally at the highest levels when the climate is moderate. Accordingly,
the Company’s sales and profits had generally been the highest in the second and third quarters. Seasonal industry trends in the past several years have included the impact
related to the addition of major RV manufacturer open houses for dealers to the September/October timeframes, whereby dealers are delaying purchases until new product
lines are introduced at these shows. This has resulted in seasonal softening in the RV industry beginning in the mid-third quarter and extending through October, and when
combined with our increased concentration in the RV industry, led to a seasonal trend pattern in which the Company achieves its strongest sales and profit levels in the first
half of the year.
 
Inflation

 
The prices of key raw materials, consisting primarily of lauan, gypsum, and particleboard, and components used by the Company that are made from these raw materials,
are influenced by demand and other factors specific to these commodities, such as the price of oil, rather than being directly affected by inflationary pressures. Prices of
certain commodities have historically been volatile and have continued to fluctuate in 2013 and 2014. During periods of rising commodity prices, we have generally been
able to pass the increased costs to our customers in the form of surcharges and price increases. We do not believe that inflation had a material effect on results of operations
for the periods presented.

 
INFORMATION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
The Company makes forward-looking statements with respect to financial condition, results of operations, business strategies, operating efficiencies or synergies,
competitive position, growth opportunities for existing products, plans and objectives of management, markets for the common stock of Patrick Industries, Inc. and other
matters from time to time and desires to take advantage of the “safe harbor” which is afforded such statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
when they are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-
looking statements. The statements contained in the foregoing “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, as well as other
statements contained in the quarterly report and statements contained in future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), publicly disseminated press
releases, quarterly earnings conference calls, and statements which may be made from time to time in the future by management of the Company in presentations to
shareholders, prospective investors, and others interested in the business and financial affairs of the Company, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. Any projections of financial
performance or statements concerning expectations as to future developments should not be construed in any manner as a guarantee that such results or developments will,
in fact, occur. There can be no assurance that any forward-looking statement will be realized or that actual results will not be significantly different from that set forth in
such forward-looking statement. The Company does not undertake to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements except as required by law. Factors that may
affect the Company’s operations and prospects are contained in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, and in the Company's Form 10-Qs for subsequent quarterly periods, which are filed with the SEC and are available on the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov.

 
ITEM 3.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

 
We are subject to market risk primarily in relation to our cash and short-term investments. The interest rate we may earn on the cash we invest in short-term investments is
subject to market fluctuations. We utilize a mix of investment maturities based on our anticipated cash needs and evaluation of existing interest rates and market conditions.
While we attempt to minimize market risk and maximize return, changes in market conditions may significantly affect the income we earn on our cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

The Company maintains “disclosure controls and procedures”, as such term is defined under Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e), that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, the Company’s management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and the Company’s management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our senior management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report (the
“Evaluation Date”). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded as of the Evaluation Date that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective such that the information relating to the Company, including consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

 
Changes in internal control over financial reporting
 
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that occurred during the first quarter
ended March 30, 2014 or subsequent to the date the Company completed its evaluation, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.       

 
 

PART II: OTHER INFORMATION
 

Items 1, 3, 4 and 5 of Part II are not applicable and have been omitted.  
 

ITEM 1A.     RISK FACTORS
 

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.
 
ITEM 2.     UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 

 (a) None.
 
 (b) None.
 
 (c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

 
On February 22, 2013, the Company’s Board authorized a stock repurchase program for purchasing up to $10.0 million of the Company’s common stock over the next 12
months. On February 13, 2014, the Company’s Board authorized an increase in the amount of the Company’s stock that may be acquired through the existing stock
repurchase program over the next 12 months to $20.0 million, including approximately $3.9 million available under the previous authorization. There were no stock
repurchases made during the first quarter ended March 30, 2014.
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In the second quarter of 2014 through April 30, 2014, the Company repurchased 23,011 shares, through the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, at an
average price of $39.90 per share for a total cost of approximately $0.9 million. Since the inception of the stock repurchase program in February 2013 through April 30,
2014, the Company has repurchased in the aggregate 430,341 shares at an average price of $16.26 per share for a total cost of approximately $7.0 million.    
 
ITEM 6.     EXHIBITS

 
 Exhibits Description
   
 10.1 Form of Performance Share Unit Award
 31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Executive Officer
 31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Financial Officer
 32 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
 101 Interactive Data Files. The following materials are filed electronically with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:
  101.INS    XBRL Instance Document
  101.SCH   XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document
  101.CAL   XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
  101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document
  101.LAB   XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
  101.PRE    XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

 
 PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC.  
 (Registrant)  
    
    

Date: May 8, 2014 By: /s/ Todd M. Cleveland  
  Todd M. Cleveland  
  Chief Executive Officer  
    
    
    

Date: May 8, 2014 By: /s/ Andy L. Nemeth  
  Andy L. Nemeth  
  Executive Vice President-Finance  
  and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 10.1

 
PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

 
 

THIS PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is granted this ____day of ________, 20__ (the “Grant Date”), by Patrick
Industries, Inc., an Indiana corporation (the “Company”), to ____________ (the “Employee”), pursuant to the Patrick Industries, Inc. Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), as
the same may be amended from time to time. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Plan.

 
In consideration of the premises, mutual covenants and agreements herein, the Company and the Employee agree as follows:
 
1.     Award of Performance Share Units. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan, effective as of the Grant Date set forth above, the

Company hereby grants to the Employee the Performance Share Units (“PSUs”) relating to each of the Performance Periods described in the Schedule hereto (the “Schedule”),
in each case with respect to that number of PSUs described in the Schedule with respect to such Performance Period. Except as otherwise provided herein, each PSU that vests
hereunder represents the right to receive one (1) share of Common Stock of the Company (each, a “Share” and collectively, “Shares”). The PSUs awarded with respect to each
Performance Period described in the Schedule is a separate award for purposes of this Agreement and Code Section 162(m).
 

2.     Performance Criteria; Vesting. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the PSUs relating to a Performance Period described in the Schedule shall
vest on the last day of such Performance Period. The actual number of PSUs that vest with respect to a Performance Period shall be determined based on the Company’s
performance during such period relative to the performance goal(s) (the “Performance Criteria”) described in the Schedule for such Performance Period. The number of PSUs
that vest with respect to a Performance Period shall range from 0% to 150% of the Target Number of PSUs relating to the Performance Period, as described in the Schedule,
based on the Company’s performance during such Performance Period.

 
3.     Service Requirement; Effect of Termination of Service.
 
(a)     Subject to Section 5 hereof, the vesting of the PSUs awarded hereunder with respect to a Performance Period is contingent upon the Employee remaining in the

continuous employment of the Company or a Subsidiary as an “Employee” (as defined in the Plan) at all times from the Grant Date through the last day of such Performance
Period. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3(b), below, if Employee’s employment with the Company or any Subsidiary is terminated prior to the last day of a
Performance Period, any then outstanding PSUs relating to such Performance Period shall be canceled effective immediately upon Employee’s termination of employment and
such canceled PSUs shall be forfeited by the Employee for no consideration.

 
(b)     Notwithstanding Section 3(a) hereof, if the Employee’s employment with the Company or any Subsidiary is terminated prior to the last day of a Performance

Period by reason of (i) a termination by the Company without Cause or (ii) the Employee’s death or Disability, Employee will be deemed to have satisfied the requirement that
Employee remain in the continuous employment of the Company or a Subsidiary through the last day of such Performance Period, but the vesting of PSUs relating to such
Performance Period shall continue to be conditioned on satisfaction of the Performance Criteria set out in the Schedule. In the event of a termination of Employee’s
employment for any of the reasons described in the preceding sentence, the actual number of PSUs that vest with respect to any such Performance Period shall be determined
based on the level of the Company’s achievement of the specified Performance Criteria for the particular Performance Period as set out in the Schedule.
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4.     Committee Certification; Form and Timing of Payment.
 
(a)     On or before March 1  of the calendar year immediately following the end of a Performance Period, the Committee shall determine and certify the extent to

which the Employee’s PSUs relating to such Performance Period shall have vested based on the Company’s performance during such Performance Period in relation to the
Performance Criteria established by the Committee for such Performance Period. The Committee shall certify these results in writing. Any PSUs relating to a Performance
Period that do not vest shall be canceled by the Company effective as of the last day of the relevant Performance Period and shall be forfeited by the Employee for no
consideration.

 
(b)     Each PSU relating to a particular Performance Period that is determined to have vested pursuant to Section 4(a) hereof shall automatically be converted,

immediately following the Committee’s certification of the Company’s performance, into the right to receive one (1) Share. Any such Shares to which the Employee is entitled
will be issued to the Employee (as evidenced by the appropriate entry in the books of the Company or a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company) not later than seventy-
five (75) days following the last day of the applicable Performance Period. Upon the issuance of Shares with respect to Employee’s vested PSUs, such PSUs shall be canceled
and Employee shall have no further rights with respect to such PSUs.
 

(c)     Any cash dividends or other distributions paid or delivered with respect to the Shares for which the record date occurs on or before the settlement of the related
PSUs under Section 4(b), excluding for these purposes any dividends or other distributions that result in an adjustment under Section 9 hereof, will be credited to a
bookkeeping account for the benefit of the Employee. The amount so credited (“deemed dividends”) will be equal to the dividends or other distributions (exclusive of dividends
or other distributions that result in an adjustment under Section 9 hereof), that would have been paid with respect to the Shares subject to the related PSUs had such Shares
been outstanding and held by Employee. Such account will be subject to the same terms and conditions (including Performance Criteria and the vesting and forfeiture
conditions set forth in Sections 2 and 3 hereof) as the PSUs to which such deemed dividends relate. The portion of such account that represents deemed dividends relating to
PSUs that become vested under Section 4(a) hereof will be converted into and settled in additional Shares issued under the Plan at the same time as the related vested PSUs are
settled under Section 4(b), determined by dividing such deemed dividends by the Fair Market Value of a Share measured as of the time of such delivery. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary herein, no fractional shares shall be issued under this Section 4(c). The portion of such account that represents deemed dividends relating to PSUs that
do not vest under Section 4(a) hereof shall be forfeited for no consideration.
 

5.     Consequences of a Change in Control of the Company.
 
(a)     Provided that the Employee either (1) remains in the continuous employment of the Company or a Subsidiary at all times from the Grant Date through the

effective time of a Change in Control or (2) the Employee’s employment with the Company or any Subsidiary is terminated prior to the effective time of a Change in Control
by reason of a termination by the Company without Cause or the Employee’s death or Disability, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the event of a Change in
Control of the Company prior to the last day of a Performance Period, the outstanding PSUs relating to such Performance Period will be considered to have vested immediately
prior to the effective time of such Change in Control in an amount equal to the Target Number of Performance Share Units relating to such Performance Period.
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(b)     Each PSU that vests under Section 5(a) hereof as a result of a Change in Control of the Company shall automatically be converted, effective immediately prior
to the consummation of such Change in Control, into the right to receive one (1) Share; provided, however, that the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to
determine that any PSU that vests pursuant to Section 5(a) hereof shall be converted into the right to receive a cash payment from the Company equal to the Fair Market Value
of a Share measured at the time of such payment. Any such Shares to which the Employee is entitled under this Section 5(b) will be issued to the Employee (as evidenced by
the appropriate entry in the books of the Company or a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company) immediately prior to the consummation of such Change in Control. At
the effective time of a Change in Control of the Company, all PSUs awarded under this Agreement that have not been previously canceled shall be immediately canceled and
Employee shall have no further rights with respect to such PSUs beyond the rights described in this Section 5(b).
 

(c)     Any deemed dividends credited to Employee’s account described in Section 4(c) hereof shall, at the effective time of a Change in Control, be paid to Employee
in a lump sum cash payment not later than ten (10) days following the effective time of such Change in Control.

 
6.     Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

“Cause” shall have the meaning set out in any separate employment agreement between the Employee and the Company and, in the absence of an employment
agreement, “Cause” shall mean Employee’s: (a) commission of an act of dishonesty, fraud, theft, or embezzlement; (b) sabotage or intentional failure to act on the
direction of an officer of the Company or the Board of Directors of the Company or of any affiliate; (c) engagement, directly or indirectly, in a business or occupation
(as a proprietor, partner, officer, shareholder, or employee, or otherwise) in competition with the Company or any of its affiliates; (d) indictment or conviction for a
felony violation of a criminal law, other than motor vehicle offenses; (e) the use or possession of illegal drugs; or (f) failure to achieve and/or perform, to the
Company’s satisfaction, Employee’s duties and responsibilities on behalf of the Company (other than due to Disability).

 
“Change In Control” shall be deemed to have occurred if:

 
(i) any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)), other than the Company or an

employee benefit plan sponsored by the Company, becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of
securities of the Company representing twenty percent (20%), or more (or if a person is permitted to own a higher percentage under the Company’s Rights Agreement,
dated March 31, 2006, as the same may be amended from time to time, such higher percentage as to such person and their affiliates and associates) of the combined
voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities ordinarily having the right to vote at elections of directors (excluding an acquisition of such securities
directly from the Company),

 
(ii) during any period of two consecutive years individuals who at the beginning of the two-year period were members of the Board cease for any reason to

constitute at least a majority of the Board (individuals with such two years of service being the “Continuing Directors”),
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(iii) there shall be consummated (A) any consolidation, merger or reorganization of the Company in which the capital stock of the Company is not converted
into or exchanged for cash, securities or other property, other than a consolidation, merger, or reorganization of the Company in which the holders of capital stock of all
classes of the Company (including Common Stock) immediately prior to the transaction have, directly or indirectly, an ownership interest in securities representing a
majority of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving entity immediately after the transaction, or (B) any sale, lease, exchange or
other transfer (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of all, or substantially all, of the assets of the Company, other than any such transaction with entities
in which the holders of the Company’s then outstanding capital stock of all classes, directly or indirectly, have an ownership interest in securities representing a majority
of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of such entities immediately after the transaction,
 

(iv) a change occurs of a nature that would be required to be reported in response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 14A, promulgated under the
Exchange Act or any successor disclosure item, or
 

(v) the stockholders of the Company approve any plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of the Company;
 
provided, however, that any occurrence described in (i) through (iv) approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Continuing Directors, shall not constitute a
Change in Control to the extent so provided by the affirmative vote of a majority of those Continuing Directors.
 

“Designated Beneficiary” shall mean such person or persons specifically designated by Employee who may be designated successively or contingently to
receive payments under this Agreement following Employee’s death, pursuant to a written beneficiary designation filed by Employee with the Company during
Employee’s lifetime. Such beneficiary designation shall be in such form as may be prescribed by the Company and may be amended from time to time or may be
revoked by Employee pursuant to written instruments filed with the Company during his or her lifetime. Beneficiaries designated by Employee may be any natural or
legal person or persons, including a fiduciary, such as a trustee of a trust or the legal representative of an estate. Unless otherwise provided by the beneficiary
designation filed by Employee, and subject to such additional rules and procedures as may be adopted by the Company with respect to successive beneficiaries, if all of
the persons so designated die before Employee on the occurrence of a contingency not contemplated in such beneficiary designation, then the term Designated
Beneficiary shall mean Employee’s estate.

 
“Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor provision.

 
“Subsidiary” or “Subsidiaries” shall mean any corporation or other entity of which outstanding shares or ownership interests representing 50% or more of the

combined voting power of such corporation or other entity entitled to elect the management thereof, or such lesser percentages may be approved by the Committee, are
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

 
7.     Withholding Taxes.
 
(a)     The award of PSUs to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, and the delivery of Shares hereunder, shall be conditioned on any applicable federal, state or

local withholding taxes having been paid by Employee at the appropriate time pursuant to a direct payment of cash or other readily available funds to the Company.
 
(b)     The Company may, in its sole discretion, provide the Employee with the right to satisfy all or any portion of his or her obligations under Section 7(a) by having

the Company withhold from the Shares to be delivered that number of Shares having an aggregate Fair Market Value, determined as of the date of the taxable event with
respect to such Shares, equal to the federal, state or local taxes required to be withheld by the Company with respect to such taxable event; provided however, that the Fair
Market Value of any Shares withheld under this Section 7(b) may not exceed the statutory minimum withholding amount required by law.
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(c)     Amounts payable to Employee under this Agreement that are paid in cash shall be net of any required withholding taxes.
 
8.     Restriction on Transferability. Neither the PSUs issued hereunder, nor any beneficial interest therein, may be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise

alienated at any time. Any attempt to do so contrary to the provisions hereof shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the above, in the event of Employee’s death, any Shares
that would otherwise have been delivered to Employee, or any payment that would otherwise be made to Employee, absent his or her death, shall thereafter be distributed or
paid to Employee’s Designated Beneficiary.

 
9.     Adjustments. The Target Number of PSUs, the number or kind of securities deliverable in settlement of vested PSUs, the Performance Criteria for any

Performance Period, and any other terms and conditions established by the Committee with respect to the PSUs awarded hereunder for a Performance Period, may be subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of an event described in Section 2.3 of the Plan. Adjustments under Section 2.3 of the Plan, if any, will be made by the Committee, whose
determination as to what adjustments will be made, will be final, binding and conclusive. No fractional shares will be issued pursuant to this Agreement on account of any such
adjustments.

 
10.     Requirements of Law. The issuance of Shares under this Agreement, if any, shall be subject to compliance by the Company and the Employee with all

applicable requirements of law relating thereto and with all applicable regulations of any stock exchange on which the Shares may be listed for trading at the time of such
issuance. The inability of the Company to obtain approval from any regulatory body having authority deemed by the Company to be necessary to the lawful issuance of any
Shares hereby shall relieve the Company of any liability with respect to the non-issuance of the Shares as to which such approval shall not have been obtained. The Company,
however, shall use its best efforts to obtain all such approvals.
 

11.     Stockholder Rights. The Employee shall not have voting, dividend or any other rights as a stockholder of the Company with respect to the PSUs. Upon the
vesting of any PSUs under this Agreement and the delivery of Shares hereunder, as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized
transfer agent of the Company, the Employee will obtain full voting, dividend and other rights as a stockholder of the Company.

 
12.     Section 409A. It is intended that the PSUs awarded hereunder and the Employee’s right, if any, to a payment (in the form of a delivery of Shares or cash, as the

case may be) pursuant to the terms of this Agreement satisfy the short-term deferral exception to the requirements of Section 409A and any related regulations or other
guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service. Any reference in this Agreement to Section 409A
will also include any proposed, temporary or final regulations, or any other guidance, promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the
Internal Revenue Service. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if any provision of this Agreement contravenes Section 409A or
could potentially cause Employee to incur any tax, interest or penalties under Section 409A, the Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to take such reasonable
steps as it may determine to be necessary or desirable, with Employee’s consent, to ensure that such amounts are not subject to such penalty tax. However, any such tax under
Section 409A is ultimately the responsibility of Employee.
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13.     Funding. To the extent the Employee holds any rights by virtue of this Agreement, such rights shall be no greater than the rights of a general unsecured creditor
of the Company. All amounts payable pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid from the general assets of the Company or other entity as the Committee may determine. This
Agreement is intended to be an unfunded deferred compensation plan which is neither an “employee welfare benefit plan” nor an “employee pension benefit plan” within the
meaning of Section 3(1) or (2) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and shall be interpreted and administered to the extent possible in a
manner consistent with that intent.

 
14.     Effect on Other Employee Benefit Plans. The value of any Shares delivered and/or cash paid to Employee pursuant to this Agreement shall not be included as

compensation, earnings, salaries, or other similar terms used when calculating the Employee’s benefits under any employee benefit plan sponsored by the Company or any
Subsidiary, except as such plan otherwise expressly provides. The Company expressly reserves its rights to amend, modify, or terminate any of the Company’s or any
Subsidiary’s employee benefit plans.

 
15.     Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if all or any part of this Agreement or the Plan is declared by any court or governmental

authority to be unlawful or invalid, such unlawfulness or invalidity shall not invalidate any portion of this Agreement or the Plan not declared to be unlawful or invalid. Any
Section of this Agreement (or part of such a Section) so declared to be unlawful or invalid shall, if possible, be construed in a manner which will give effect to the terms of such
Section or part of a Section to the fullest extent possible while remaining lawful and valid.
 

16.     Subject to the Plan. This Agreement and the PSUs awarded hereunder shall be subject to and governed by all of the terms and conditions of the Plan. A copy of
the Plan is available for review by Employee upon request to the Company’s Secretary and is hereby incorporated by reference. In the event of any discrepancy or
inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of the Plan, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.

 
17.     Entire Agreement. The Plan and this Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the Company and the Employee with respect to the subject matter hereof and

supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and the Employee with respect to the subject matter hereof.
 
18.     No Assurance of Continued Employment by the Company. The granting of PSUs hereunder is in consideration of the Employee’s continuing as a Service

Provider to the Company or a Subsidiary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Employee any right to continue as a Service Provider
to the Company or any Subsidiary, or affect the right of the Company or any Subsidiary to terminate the Employee’s services (subject to the terms of any separate employment
or other contract) at any time in the sole discretion of the Company or any Subsidiary, with or without cause.

 
19.     Interpretation. The interpretation and construction of any terms or conditions of the Plan, or of this Agreement or other matters related to the Plan by the

Committee shall be final and conclusive.
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20.     Enforceability. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Employee and the Employee’s estate, personal representative and beneficiaries.
 
21.     Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana (regardless of the law that might

otherwise govern under applicable Indiana principles of conflict of laws).
 
22.     Amendment. The terms and conditions of this Agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the Company and the Employee or such other persons as

may have an interest herein, evidenced in writing.
 

[Signature page follows]
 
 

 
-7-



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Committee has caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first above written.
 
 
 
 
 

PATRICK INDUSTRIES, INC.
 
 
 
 
 

By________________________
 

    Its:
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE
 
 
 

________________________
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS           
 
I, Todd M. Cleveland, certify that:
 
 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Patrick Industries, Inc. (the “registrant”);
 

 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 
d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
 
 
Date:  May 8, 2014 /s/ Todd M. Cleveland
 Todd M. Cleveland
 Chief Executive Officer
 



Exhibit 31.2
     

CERTIFICATIONS           
 
I, Andy L. Nemeth, certify that:
 
 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Patrick Industries, Inc. (the “registrant”);
 

 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

 4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 
d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter

(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
 
 
Date:  May 8, 2014 /s/ Andy L. Nemeth
 Andy L. Nemeth
 Executive Vice President – Finance and
 Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the quarterly report of Patrick Industries, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 2014, as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that: 1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and 2) the information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company
as of and for the periods covered in the Report.
 

 
 
/s/ Todd M. Cleveland
Todd M. Cleveland
Chief Executive Officer
 
/s/ Andy L. Nemeth
Andy L. Nemeth
Executive Vice President – Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
 
May 8, 2014

 


